
Joint Lead Member Briefing Planning & Sustainable 
Development and Housing & Neighbourhoods 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Joint Lead Member Briefing Planning & 
Sustainable Development and Housing & Neighbourhoods to be held as follows for the 
transaction of the business indicated.

Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Tuesday, 19 March 2019

TIME: 9.30 am

VENUE: The Boardroom, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence. 

2  Declarations of interest. 

3  Decision Items (Part 1 - Open to the Public): 

3a Oriole Drive, Ellenbrook - Proposed Waiting Restrictions - TRO 2164. (Pages 1 - 10)

3b 'Urban Innovative Action - IGNITION Project - Partnership Agreement 
between GMCA and Salford City Council. 

(Pages 11 - 20)

4  Any other business. 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602
Claire Edwards E-Mail: claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1

 Part 1 - Open to the Public 
 

 

 
 

 
REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

 
 

TO THE LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING & SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
 

19th March 2019
 

 
TITLE: Oriole Drive, Ellenbrook – Proposed waiting restrictions – TRO 2164 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
That the Lead Member for Strategic Planning consider the contents of this report and 
the deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel and make a decision to: 
 
Overrule the objections and introduce the amended scheme as detailed in this report. 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  
 
A proposal has been put forward through the Worsley & Boothstown Community 
Committee to introduce a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for ‘No Waiting at Any 
Time’ (double yellow lines) on both sides of Oriole Drive, at the junction with 
Newearth Road, and on Oriole Drive to just beyond its junction with Blackcap Close. 
 
The proposal intends to address concerns raised by the local community regarding 
parking by commuters which is restricting access on Oriole Drive, particularly at the 
junctions with Newearth Road, Firecrest Court, Goldcrest Court and Blackcap Close.   
 
The TRO to introduce the waiting restrictions was advertised on the 2nd August 2018 
for a period of 21 days and during that period received 4 objections.    
 
Following consideration of the objections, the members of the Highways Task Group 
have agreed that an amended scheme be proposed which will achieve the objective 
of providing safe access for vehicles and pedestrians, but will replace some of the ‘at 
any time’ parking restrictions with day time restrictions, thereby addressing some of 
the concerns expressed by residents. 
 
The new proposals were circulated to the 4 objectors, 2 of whom subsequently 
withdrew their objection, leaving 2 outstanding objections.  
 
This matter was considered at the Traffic Advisory Panel on 17th January 2019. The 
objectors were invited, but did not attend. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3a



 

 2

 
 
Background 
 
A request has been received from Worsley and Boothstown Community Committee 
to provide a scheme on Oriole Drive, Ellenbrook to deal with parking problems on 
Oriole Drive predominantly caused by commuters using the Leigh-Salford-
Manchester Guided Busway. 
  
Complaints have been received from local residents, which are supported by site 
visits that vehicles are parking on both sides of Oriole Drive which is causing access 
and road safety problems.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 
Investigations including site visits at various times have observed parking occurring 
close to the junctions in the area, which is reducing visibility and access for 
pedestrians and vehicles. 
  
Therefore in order to improve safe vehicular access on Oriole Drive and at its 
junction with Newearth Road a parking scheme was designed to seek to introduce to 
waiting restrictions as shown on the attached plan and schedule. 
 
The TRO was advertised on the 2nd August 2018 for a period of 21 days and 
received 4 objections. The objections were predominantly regarding the loss of 
parking facilities for residents and their guests as a result of the proposed waiting 
restrictions.     
 
Following consideration of the objections received, the scheme as advertised was 
reviewed and an amended scheme was designed, which seeks to achieve the 
objective of providing safe access for pedestrians and vehicles at the main Oriole 
Drive/Newearth Road junction by maintain the proposed ‘No waiting at any time’ 
parking restrictions. 
 
It is proposed to amend the original scheme by providing day time restrictions ‘No 
waiting Mon to Friday 8am to 4pm’ on both sides from Firecrest Close to just beyond 
Blackcap Close, instead of the initially proposed ‘No waiting at any time restrictions. t 
is considered that there would be no issues with parking on this section outside these 
times, and it will allow a greater flexibility for parking by residents and their guests.    
 
The Members of the Highways Task Group were consulted and support the 
introduction of the amended scheme. 
 
The new proposals were circulated to the 4 objectors, two of whom subsequently 
withdrew their objection, leaving 2 outstanding objections.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

 3

Proposals (Original): 
Introduction of:  No waiting at any time Restrictions 
   
Oriole Drive Both sides From its junction with 

Newearth Road to a 
point 10 metres west of 
its junction with 
Blackcap Close 

Newearth Road South east side From its junction with 
Oriole Drive in a south 
easterly direction for a 
distance of 8 metres. 
 

Newearth Road North west side From its junction with 
the Oriole Drive in a 
north westerly direction 
for a distance of 8 
metres. 
 

 
 
Proposals (Amended scheme following advertisement and consideration of 
objections)  
 
Introduction of: 
 
No waiting at any time 
 
   
Newearth Road South east side From its junction with 

Oriole Drive in a south 
easterly direction for a 
distance of 8 metres. 
 

Newearth Road North west side From its junction with the 
Oriole Drive in a north 
westerly direction for a 
distance of 8 metres. 
 

Oriole Drive North west side From its junction with 
Newearth Road to its 
junction with the north 
eastern kerbline of 
Firecrest Court.  

Oriole Drive South east side From its junction with  
Newearth Road to its 
junction with north east 
kerbline of Goldcrest 
Close 

 

Page 3



 

 4

Introduction of: 
 
No waiting Monday to Friday 10am-4pm 
 
Oriole Drive North west side From its junction with 

Firecrest Close in a 
south westerly direction 
for a distance of 63 
metres.  

Oriole Drive South east side From its junction with   
Goldcrest Close to a 
point 10 metres west 
from its junction with 
Blackcap Close 

 
Consideration of Objections 
 
The following table summarises the general points raised by the original 4 objections 
and provides a response:  
 
OBJECTION  RESPONSE 
Objector 1 – The proposals will 
lead to fewer places for residents 
and their guests to be able to park. 
Objection withdrawn following 
changes to the advertised 
scheme. 

Having considered the objections received, the 
length of ‘No waiting at any time’ parking 
restrictions within the scheme has been reduced 
to the minimum which will maintain safe 
vehicular and pedestrian access at the main 
junction of Oriole Drive/Newearth Road. 
 
The introduction of working day\time restrictions 
on Oriole Drive on the length away from the 
Newerath Road junction (which previously was 
proposed to be No waiting at any time) will allow 
more flexibility for residents and their guests to 
park during off peak less busy times. 

Objector 2 – The proposals will 
lead to fewer places for residents 
and their guests/visitors to be able 
to park. It was considered that 
there was no need for such 
extensive parking restrictions.  

Having considered the objections received, the 
length of ‘No waiting at any time’ parking 
restrictions within the scheme has been reduced 
to the minimum which will maintain safe 
vehicular and pedestrian access at the main 
junction of Oriole Drive/Newearth Road. 
 
The introduction of working day\time restrictions 
on Oriole Drive on the length away from the 
Newerath Road junction (which previously 
proposed to be No waiting at any time) will allow 
more flexibility for residents and their guests to 
park during off peak less busy times. 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

 5

 
Objector 3 – The proposals will 
lead to fewer places for residents 
and their guests/visitors to be able 
to park. Many residents have 
multiple vehicles and thus need to 
park on street. 
 
It was mentioned that the 
proposals may transfer parking 
into other nearby areas. 
 
The objector asked whether 
residents parking could be 
introduced. 

Having considered the objections received, the 
length of ‘No waiting at any time’ parking 
restrictions within the scheme has been reduced 
to the minimum which will maintain safe 
vehicular and pedestrian access at the main 
junction of Oriole Drive/Newearth Road. 
 
The introduction of working day\time restrictions 
on Oriole Drive on the length away from the 
Newearth Road junction (which previously 
proposed to be No waiting at any time) will allow 
more flexibility for residents and their guests to 
park during less busy times. 
 
It is accepted that there may be transference of 
parking, but given the short length of the 
restrictions this will be low. However, as with all 
waiting restriction schemes the effects will be 
monitored and appropriate action taken if 
deemed necessary in the future. 
 
Residents in the area have off street parking 
facilities and hence a resident’s only parking 
scheme would not be justified under the current 
criteria.   
 

Objector 4 –  
Will restrict parking facilities for 
residents and visitors/workmen 
etc. 
 
Will transfer parking to other close 
by areas 
 
The objector asked whether 
residents parking could be 
introduced?. 
 
Objection withdrawn following 
changes to the advertised 
scheme. 
 

 
Having considered the objections received, the 
length of ‘No waiting at any time’ parking 
restrictions within the scheme has been reduced 
to the minimum which will maintain safe 
vehicular and pedestrian access at the main 
junction of Oriole Drive/Newearth Road. 
 
The introduction of working day\time restrictions 
on Oriole Drive on the length away from the 
Newearth Road junction (which previously 
proposed to be No waiting at any time) will allow 
more flexibility for residents and their guests to 
park during off peak less busy times. 
 
It is accepted that there may be transference of 
parking, but given the short length of the 
restrictions this will be low. However, as with all 
waiting restriction schemes the effects will be 
monitored and appropriate action taken if 
deemed necessary in the future. 
 
Residents in the area have off street parking 

Page 5



 

 6

facilities and hence a resident’s only parking 
scheme would not be justified under the current 
criteria.   
 

 
The objection emails are attached to this report (Including Objections 1 and 4 which 
has been subsequently withdrawn). 
 
Deliberations of the Traffic Advisory Panel 
 
The matter was considered at the Traffic Advisory Panel on 17th January 2019. None 
of the objectors attended the meeting although invited. 
 
Local Councillors were in favour of the amended scheme. 
 
The Panel members expressed general support for the amended scheme. 
 
The Lead member indicated that, having considered the evidence presented, he was 
minded to approve the introduction of the amended scheme. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that following consideration of the objections received that the 
amended scheme be introduced. 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:  
 
Implementation of parking restrictions would improve access for vehicles and 
pedestrians; however there is a risk that it will generate parking problems for local 
residents who may be unable to park outside or near to their homes. All efforts have 
been made to reduce the impact on local parking while designing the restrictions and 
the amended restrictions are shorter which will have a lesser impact on parking for 
residents. If the restrictions do not go in, there is a risk of continued access issues for 
vehicles and pedestrians. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
'Where objections are received by the Council following the advertisement of 
proposals, the decision regarding the implementation of the proposals is delegated to 
the relevant Lead Member for determination, following consultation with the Council’s 

Page 6



 

 7

Traffic Advisory Panel.  Adhering to this procedure should not give rise to any legal 
implications.  
 
Under regulation 14(1) of the Local Authorities’ Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England 
and Wales) Regulations 1996 (“the Regulations”), an order making authority may 
modify an order, whether in consequence of any objections or otherwise, before it is 
made.  
 
Should the recommendations be approved as set out in this report these will not be 
considered a substantial change under regulation 14(3) of the Regulations 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS:  
 
The costs are to be met from the Block 3 Highways Capital allocation of the Worsley 
& Boothstown devolved budget from the 2017/18 financial year.  
 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS:  
 
Not applicable  
 
 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A. 
 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None.

 
  
CONTACT OFFICER: Steven Ashton TEL NO: 0161 779 4912  
 
 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  Boothstown & Ellenbrook 
 
 
 
 
 
Ben Dolan 
Strategic Director, Place 
 
 

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR 
PLACE 

TO THE LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

ON 19TH MARCH 2019

FOR DECISION

TITLE: ‘Urban Innovative Action – IGNITION project – Partnership Agreement 
between GMCA and Salford City Council’

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable 
Development:

i. endorses Salford City Council’s participation in the IGNITION project;
ii. delegates the signing of the formal Partnership Agreement to the Strategic 

Director Place. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

This report is seeking formal endorsement for Salford City Council’s participation in 
the EU funded ‘Urban Innovative Action’ IGNITION project being led by GMCA.
Greater Manchester, as with most global cities, lacks resources and robust 
processes of delivery to address the challenge of urban climate change adaptation.  
To facilitate this, GMCA has bid for and been successful in attracting an award of 
£4m EU funding for the ‘IGNITION’ Urban Innovative Action (UIA) project. 
The project provides the opportunity for Greater Manchester to identify pipelines of 
natural capital (Green/Blue infrastructure) climate adaptation projects at the €10m+ 
scale, which are attractive to private investors, creating the mechanisms and 
confidence for investments to be made in Nature-based solutions (NBS). Work on 
project planning, legal, finance and contract issues is nearing completion.  However, 
there is an urgent need to seek formal approval to accept this EU funding and enter 
into contract before the UK leaves the EU at the end of March.
The project will have an initial focus on the ‘urban core’ of Greater Manchester. As 
such two districts - Salford City Council and Manchester City Council - will be formal 
project partners and affiliates to the GMCA.

Page 11

Agenda Item 3b



2

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

Full IGNITION application form – available to view on request
GM Natural Capital Investment Plan 

KEY DECISION: NO

ON FORWARD LOOK:       NO

DETAILS:

1 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

This report is seeking formal endorsement for Salford City Council’s participation in 
the EU funded ‘Urban Innovative Action’ IGNITION project being led by GMCA. 
GMCA’s role as lead beneficiary was formally endorsed at the GMCA meeting on 1st 
March 2019. The 12 Project Partners are listed in Annex 1.
The University of Manchester estimates that GM needs a net 10% increase in urban 
green infrastructure to adapt to climate change, including projects such as 
Sustainable Urban Drainage (SUDS), urban tree planting, green roofs and walls. 
Insufficient numbers of these projects are currently being delivered to adapt the city-
region to climate change. Generally, urban green infrastructure is being lost through 
the creation of impermeable hard surfaces. The risk of urban flooding and 
overheating are increasing with a 10 fold increase in surface water flooding and 
doubling in heat stress incidents since the 1950s.
The IGNITION project addresses the need for GM to develop the structures, funding 
and delivery processes required to significantly increase the identification, funding, 
delivery and management of an ongoing programme of Green infrastructure projects 
at the scale needed to manage expected future climate hazards.  
This project will help to support delivery of the ‘Greater Manchester Natural Capital 
Investment Plan’ recently developed by the Natural Capital Group – GM’s Local 
Nature Partnership and launched at the ‘Investing to green GM’ conference on 30th 
January 2019 . The Investment Plan explores a range of approaches to attracting 
new funding streams to support the creation and management of green 
infrastructure. One of the findings is that it is easier to attract funding from non-
traditional sources for programmes of work which have a large value rather than 
funding for ‘one off’ projects.   
IGNITION is an acronym which has been developed to describe the project:
Innovative financinG aNd delIvery of naTural clImate sOlutioNs in Greater 
Manchester 

Page 12



3

2 TOWARDS A DELIVERY OF PROGRAMME

The IGNITION project will research and identify pipelines of natural capital 
(Green/Blue infrastructure) climate adaptation projects at the €10m+ scale which are 
attractive to private investors, creating the mechanisms and confidence for 
investments to be made in Nature-based solutions (NBS). The project budget is £5m 
over 3 years; 80% from ERDF with 20% match. It is highly innovative and pioneering. 
40% of the evaluation of the bid was for its innovation and the funding scheme 
recognises the high risk / high reward, `game changing’ nature of the project. 

To achieve this, the project will develop: 

 Pipelines of a scale to attract investment. Establish a pipeline of NBS 
projects and establish phases, valued at €10m+, to attract private 
investment scaled to the right level for them to become viable investments. 

 Business models and funding. Establish innovative business models and 
financing mechanisms to enable investment in Phase 1 of the pipeline. 

 Investor confidence. Build investor confidence (and underpinning 
evidence) in GM NBS projects; this will involve significant engagement 
activities. Part of the project will also see the creation of a `Living Lab’ by 
the University of Salford. Similar to the Energy house 
(https://www.salford.ac.uk/built-environment/laboratories-and-
studios/energy-house) but to scientifically test the impact of Green 
Infrastructure on buildings. 

 Innovative governance, delivery and maintenance mechanisms. 
Establish a wider nature based solutions (NBS) project funding and 
delivery framework and set up any necessary delivery 
vehicles/procurement processes to deliver Phase 1 of the pipeline e.g. 
establish a NBS Service Company

The scope of the work encompasses an early focus on `urban’ Greater Manchester 
(hence Manchester and Salford as beneficiaries on behalf of the 10 District’s) but 
will also deliver activities over a wider geographic area as their ecosystem services 
impact on the urban core.  The rationale for GMCA’s lead beneficiary role is the link 
between the UIA’s aims and objectives and GMCA’s economic development and 
place making roles, with our ability to bring together public, private, academic and 
third sector bodies to deliver a cohesive programme. Annex 1 lists the Project 
Partners. 

3 SALFORD CITY COUNCIL’S ROLE IN THE PROJECT

As shown on Annex 2, the headline budget for the project is £4m new (ERDF 
derived) EU monies, which is matched by £1m from the 12 project partners (an 80% 
co-financing rate). Many partners are providing the match through existing officer 
time. In Salford’s case it is anticipated that the match will be primarily through the 
Group Leader Environment and Climate Change within the Planning and Housing 
Service. The grant will be used to fund a new temporary Project Officer post to 
progress the work.

Page 13



4

An early output for Salford will be the creation of the pipeline of green infrastructure 
projects in the city. This should enable Salford to be an early beneficiary of any new 
funding streams. It should be noted that the EU IGNITION budget does not include 
funding for capital delivery – it is focused on the creation of skills and capacity to 
develop the programme and engage with potential financers. 

As shown on Annex 2, Salford University are the biggest beneficiaries of the grant. 
This will be used to fund the creation of a ‘Living Lab’ within the University campus. 
This will be a test bed innovative green and blue infrastructure interventions. The 
grant will also pay for a number of project staff across partners including programme 
management capacity within the GMCA Environment team.

The IGNITION programme is a good fit with a number of existing projects for Salford 
including the Green City programme which has delivered a number of innovative 
green infrastructure projects across the city. It will also help to inform the 
development of the City Council’s Green Infrastructure Strategy / Supplementary 
Planning Document which we will be taking forward following the adoption of the 
Greenspace Strategy on 31st January 2019. 

The terms of Salford City Council’s participation are set out in a ‘back to back’ 
Partnership Agreement currently being drawn up by the GMCA. This is being 
assessed by legal colleagues. Due to the timescales required to secure sign off it is 
recommended that the final sign off of the Partnership Agreement should be 
delegated to the Strategic Director Place. 

4 GOVERNANCE AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT

The project will run until 31/10/2021. The Natural Capital Group, reporting to the 
GMCA via the Low Carbon Hub Board, is proposed as the formal oversight group, to 
engage a broader set of stakeholders. A full partnership Board (chaired by a partner) 
is proposed for significant project steering and project level decision-making. 
Practical project management will be delivered via GMCA coordination and a Senior 
Programme Management Group, meeting monthly at the project start.  

5 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

As pressure on public funding continues to increase it is essential that new ways of 
creating and managing our green infrastructure are explored. Green Infrastructure 
can play a vital role in helping to adapt to the implications of climate change in our 
cities which are becoming more pronounced. As one of the two pioneering councils in 
this project, Salford will be a strong position to benefit from the outcomes of the 
project.

It is recommended that the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable 
Development:

i. endorses Salford City Council’s participation in the IGNITION project;
ii. delegates the signing of the formal Partnership Agreement to the Strategic 

Director Place. 

Page 14



5

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
 City of Salford Unitary Development Plan 2004 – 2016: Saved Policies
 City of Salford Draft Local Plan
 Salford’s Greenspace Strategy – adopted January 31st 2019

COMMUNITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

Research has shown that some of our most vulnerable communities will be at the 
highest risk from climate change in the city. It is essential that the City Council is 
being proactive in developing solutions to address those impacts. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

As with all external funding there is a risk of claw back from the EU if the project fails 
to deliver outputs. This risk will minimised through robust programme and 
performance management measures.  

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

As outlined in the report programme is funded through EU (80%) with match funding 
through officer time.
  

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Lauren Armstrong, Solicitor, tel 0161 234 4178

In order to receive the City Council to receive its portion of the IGNITION project 
funding, Salford is required to enter into a Partnership Agreement. This has been 
drafted by the GMCA as the lead authority. The Partnership Agreement also includes 
a number of annexed documents which includes the project application form (setting 
out project elements, deliverables, partner commitments etc), payment schedules, 
match funding requirements (match funding to be via staff time). 

I have been provided with a copy of the Partnership Agreement in draft form and 
have returned an amended draft to Salford’s Contact Officer. My only substantive 
comment was that clauses should be added to account for GDPR (should there be 
any personal data being shared under the project), and also in respect of allowing the 
City Council to share confidential information about the project should it be under a 
legal obligation to do so (for example under a Freedom of Information request) and 
there is no exclusion/exemption available to avoid sharing this information. GMCA 
have not provided a response to my suggested additions at the time of writing.  

Page 15



6

In terms of any legal risk/implications the Partnership Agreement presents, it is 
important to remember that this contract imposes obligations on the City Council for 
its respective part of the project. These include the usual obligations, e.g. to meet 
delivery times, budgets and outputs, in addition to reporting and information sharing 
requirements. A couple of obligations are drafted as broad ‘catch-alls’ – in particular 
Article 5.2(a) states that the City Council shall “take all actions necessary for full, 
timely and smooth implementation of its part of the Project”. However what is 
‘necessary’ is subjective, and it would be difficult for GMCA to enforce this if Salford 
can demonstrate that it is complying with the more precise obligations (e.g. 
dedication of staff time, outputs etc). Article 16.1 also states that the partners “agree 
not to back out of the Project unless they have unavoidable reasons to do so”.

The Partnership Agreement is not for a set term – Article 3.2 states that it shall 
“continue in force until complete fulfilment of the GMCA Authority and Partners’ 
obligations under the Project Partnership Agreement and annexed subsidiary 
contract”. Therefore the exact duration of the agreement is unknown, although this 
will be informed by the project timescales in any event. 

In practice the legal risk may regarded as low, as long as the City Council is meeting 
the requirements for the funding for the duration of the agreement. Should Salford 
not meet the obligations for the funding or seek to leave the Project within the term of 
the agreement, then Article 13.1 sets out an ‘early warning system’ – i.e. that the 
GMCA sets out the issue and gives Salford a timescale for improvement. This is 
coupled with an obligation for the partners to work together to find a solution. Failure 
to make improvements would result in the City Council being in breach of contract.  
In terms of consequences for this, it should be noted that any liabilities, damages and 
costs arising from Salford’s part of the project will be the sole responsibility of the City 
Council. Ultimately this could also result in Salford being excluded or replaced for 
non-compliance, and the GMCA would likely exercise clawback of the funding 
provided in the event. If non-fulfilment of the City Council’s obligations impacts the 
overall level of funding, then the GMCA may demand compensation from the City 
Council to cover the shortfall. However the risk is dependent upon whether GMCA 
actually seeks to enforce any of these terms or pursue a remedy against Salford. 

Overall the Partnership Agreement would be acceptable to Salford from a legal 
perspective, as long as the City Council meets the obligations for the funding as 
detailed in the various Annexed documents, and takes appropriate action/works 
together with the GMCA should it receive any warning under Article 13. Therefore 
before the City Council enters into the agreement it should be satisfied as to its 
obligations, and that it can commit necessary resources for the lifetime of the project. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Paul Hutchings, Strategic Finance 
Manager x2574

As identified in Annex 2, Salford City Council are expected to receive EU funding of 
£184k to fund a project officer post over the three years of the scheme. In return for 
the grant, we are required to provide a 20% match funding contribution which will 

Page 16



7

materialise as the costs of the current group leader for environment and climate 
change.

In light of the current position regarding Brexit, it must be noted that there is still an 
element of risk in entering into EU funded schemes at this point.  It is imperative that 
we seek confirmation of the funding of this scheme over its lifecycle.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: n/a

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Steve Hulme 607 8631

The proposal is to employ a temporary project officer to support the project delivery 
the end date of which is October 2021. The appointment would be made on a fixed 
term contract however as there is a potential for the contract to go over 2 years this 
would mean there is a risk of the contract attracting employment rights, and as such 
redundancy rights. In the event the contract exceeded the 2 years the councils 
Managing Workforce & Structural changes policy would be applied. 

Whilst the funding would cover the direct costs associated with employment, 
provision should be considered for the potential redundancy and redeployment costs 
should the contract attain employment rights. 

The role of project manager currently exists within the council, and has been job 
evaluated at grade 4C to 5A these roles could be adapted to cover this project. The 
cost of a 3 year contract would therefore be circa £157,500 including employer on 
costs. This may vary dependent on the expectations of the role once scoped out and 
does not include redundancy costs. 

The appointment to the position would be made in line with Salford City Council’s 
recruitment policy and would be subject to formal approval through the filling of 
vacant posts process.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

Discussions about the programme have taken place with colleagues in Regeneration 
and Environment. There will be ongoing involvement throughout the project.

CONTACT OFFICERS: Will Horsfall, 793 3655

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: ALL

Page 17



8

ANNEX 1 - PARTNERS CURRENTLY INVOLVED 

A core group of partners has been assembled to guide bid development. These 
represent primary partners or delivery partners from within a wider technical/steering 
group:

a. GMCA - Primary Urban Authority (the coordinating beneficiary for the bid)
b. Associated Urban Authorities – 

i. Manchester City Council
ii. Salford City Council 

c. Delivery partners:
i. Business in the Community
ii. University of Salford
iii. University of Manchester
iv. Environment Agency 
v. United Utilities
vi. City of Trees
vii. Groundwork
viii. UK Green Building Council
ix. Royal Horticultural Society

d. Broad technical and partner stakeholder group:
i. Bruntwood
ii. Manchester Climate Change Agency
iii. RSL representatives
iv. Others TBC

Page 18



9

ANNEX 2 - TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET FOR ALL PARTNERS

 
TOTAL project 
budget (£) 80% ERDF (£)

20% match 
(£)

GMCA £846,416.75 £677,133.40 £169,283.35

Manchester City Council £61,650.00 £49,320.00 £12,330.00

Salford City Council £229,770.00 £183,816.00 £45,954.00

Environment Agency £648,624.25 £518,899.40 £129,724.85

United Utilities £69,000.00 £55,200.00 £13,800.00

Business in the Community £277,212.50 £221,770.00 £55,442.50

UK Green Building Council £129,650.23 £103,720.18 £25,930.05

Groundwork £150,255.00 £120,204.00 £30,051.00

City of Trees £324,626.63 £259,701.30 £64,925.33

University of Manchester £487,312.50 £389,850.00 £97,462.50

University of Salford £1,546,941.51 £1,237,553.21 £309,388.30

Royal Horticultural Society £228,367.00 £182,693.60 £45,673.40

TOTAL (£) £4,999,826.37 £3,999,861.10 £999,965.27

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a Oriole Drive, Ellenbrook - Proposed Waiting Restrictions - TRO 2164.
	Report
	Advertised Scheme
	Amended Scheme

	3b 'Urban Innovative Action - IGNITION Project - Partnership Agreement between GMCA and Salford City Council.

